
 
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ 

AGENDA OF THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
March 26, 2025 at 11:00 a.m. 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ 
2160 41st Avenue, Capitola, CA 95010 

1. Roll Call 
HOUSING AUTHORITY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS: 

  
Chairperson Providence Martinez Alaniz 4 year term expires, February 10, 2027 
Vice Chairperson Annette Melendrez 4 year term expires, September 29, 2027 
Commissioner Carol Berg 4 year term expires, May 21, 2025 
Commissioner Ligaya Eligio 2 year term expires, October 18, 2026 
Commissioner Silvia Morales 4 year term September 1, 2027 
Commissioner Andy Schiffrin 4 year term expires, March 17, 2027 
Commissioner Richard Schmale 2 year term expires, May 12, 2025 

 
2. Consideration of Late Additions and Changes to the Agenda 

 
3. Consent Agenda 

 
A. Minutes of the Regular Meeting held February 26, 2025 

 
Motion to Approve 
 

B. Audited Financial Statements for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 
 

                  Motion to Approve the Agency-Wide Audited Financial Statements for Fiscal Year  
       Ending June 30, 2024 

 
 

C. AB 282: Source of Income Discrimination 
 
Motion to Endorse AB 282: Discrimination: Housing: Source of Income 
 

4. Oral Communications (All oral communications must be directed to an item not listed on this agenda 
and must be within the jurisdiction of the Board.  Presentations must not exceed three minutes in length.  The 
Board will not take action or respond immediately to any Oral Communication presented, but may choose to 
follow up at a later time or schedule item for a subsequent agenda.  The Board may limit the total amount of 
time allowed for oral communication).  Anyone addressing the Board of Commissioners is asked to complete 
a card and leave it with the Board secretary so that their names may be accurately recorded in the Minutes. 

 
5. Unfinished Business 
 
6.   New Business 

 
A. Public Hearing, Review and Consideration of Draft 2025 Annual PHA Plan, 5 Year 

PHA Plan, Housing Choice Voucher Administrative Plan, and MTW Supplement for 
the Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz 
 



Motion to Approve Drafts of the 2025 Annual PHA Plan, 5 Year PHA Plan, Housing 
Choice Voucher Program Administrative Plan, and Moving to Work Supplement to the 
PHA Plan. 
 

       Motion to Adopt Resolution No. 2025-05: Authorizing Execution of PHA Certification  
       of Compliance with PHA Plans and Related Regulations; Board Resolution to  

      Accompany the Annual PHA Plan for the Housing Authority of the County of Santa  
      Cruz. 

 
                  Motion to Adopt Resolution No. 2025-06: Authorizing Execution of MTW  
                  Certifications of Compliance with Regulations; Board Resolution to Accompany the  
                  MTW Supplement to the Annual PHA Plan for the Housing Authority of the County  
                  of Santa Cruz. 
 

B. Role of the Development Subcommittee   
 

      Motion to Expand the Role of the Development Subcommittee  
          
7. Written Correspondence  

 
8. Director’s Report 

 
9. Reports from Board Members 
 (Board members may report on meetings attended, if any, or other items of interest.) 
 
10. Closed Session 

 
11. Report on Closed Session 

 
12. Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Housing Authority complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act.  If you are a person with disabilities and 
you require special assistance in order to participate, please contact the Board secretary at 831-454-9455, ext. 201 at 
least 72 hours in advance of the meeting in order to make arrangements.  Persons with disabilities may request a copy 
of the agenda in an alternative format. 
Spanish language translation is available on an as needed basis.  Please make arrangements 72 hours in advance by 
contacting the Housing Authority at 831-454-9455, ext. 280. 
Agendas can be obtained from the Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz Administration Department.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            
 
 
 
 
 
  



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ, MINUTES OF THE REGULAR 
MEETING FEBRUARY 26, 2025, AT THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA 
CRUZ, 2160 41ST AVENUE, CAPITOLA, CA 95010 

  
 

  

1 

 AGENDA ITEM NO. 1  Roll Call   
Chairperson Martinez Alaniz called the meeting to order at 11:00 a.m. Members present Chairperson 
Martinez Alaniz, Vice Chairperson Melendrez, Commissioners Berg, Eligio, Morales, Schiffrin and 
Schmale 
 
Members Absent 
None 
 
Staff Present 
Jennifer Panetta, Tom Graham and Courtney Byrd of the Housing Authority 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 2     Consideration of Late Additions or Changes to the Agenda 
 
Secretary Panetta informed the Board that there are no late additions or changes to the agenda but wanted 
to inform the Board that there is also a Merrill Road Housing Corporation Meeting, a New Horizons 
Affordable Housing and Development Inc. meeting and a Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz 
Closed Session Item. Secretary Panetta suggested recessing the Housing Authority meeting prior to closed 
session, conducting the Merrill Road and New Horizons meeting, and then calling the Housing Authority 
back to order for the Closed Session Item. The Board of Commissioners agreed.  
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 3     Consent Agenda 
 
Chairperson Martinez Alaniz asked for a motion to approve the Consent Agenda unless any Board of 
Commissioners or members of the public would like to pull an item from the agenda or have 
comments/questions on an item. 
 
Commissioner Schiffrin moved for the approval of the Consent Agenda; Commissioner Eligio seconded 
the motion and it was passed by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Commissioners Berg, Eligio, Martinez Alaniz , Melendrez,  Morales, Schiffrin and 
Schmale 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
 
Agenda Item 3A. Approved Minutes of the Regular  Meeting held January 22, 2025 
Agenda Item 3B. Received Report Quarterly Financials 
Agenda Item 3C. Received Report Fall 2024 Project-Based Voucher Request for Proposals 



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ, MINUTES OF THE REGULAR 
MEETING FEBRUARY 26, 2025, AT THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA 
CRUZ, 2160 41ST AVENUE, CAPITOLA, CA 95010 

  
 

  

2 

Agenda Item 3D.  Adopted Updated Salary Chart    
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 4    Oral Communications 
None. 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 5A   Unfinished Business 
None. 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 6A       Annual PHA Plan, 5-Year PHA Plan, Housing Choice Voucher   
                                                  Administrative Plan, and Moving to Work Supplement to the Annual      
                                                  PHA Plan 
 
Secretary Panetta brought before the Board for review the Draft Annual Agency Plan and 5 Year Plan 
for the Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz along with the Housing Choice Voucher 
Administrative Plan and the MTW Supplement. A copy of these draft plans were provided to the Resident 
Advisory Board (RAB) for discussion and feedback. Secretary Panetta noted that the Draft plans are 
available for public review and comment on the Housing Authority website. The public hearings for the 
discussion of these plans will take place at the March 26, 2025 Regular Meeting. This meeting date is 
being publicized in a Public Notice in the Santa Cruz Sentinel, Pajaronian and Hollister Freelance. 
Secretary Panetta and the Board went through the changes to the Agency Plan, 5 Year Plan, HCV 
Administrative Plan and MTW Supplement that were included in this month’s Board Packet. Staff noted 
that the information is presented for discussion and feedback only, and that the drafts will return to the 
Board at the March meeting for approval. A discussion followed. The Board questioned how many times 
these items should come before the Board. Staff agreed to update the approach related to Board review 
of the plans to eliminate the December discussion from future meetings, such that future plans will be 
provided to the Board two times (in February and March); once for discussion and once for approval, 
instead of three times. 

 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 6B   Rescinding Project-Based Voucher Awards 
 
Secretary Panetta reminded the Board that the Project Based Voucher (PBV) Program has grown 
significantly over the last few years. PBVs are a scarce and valuable resource and are intended to support 
projects that are able to make demonstrable progress toward initially executing a Housing Assistance 
Payment Contract (AHAP), complete construction in a timely manner, and subsequently execute a  
Housing Assistance Payment Contract (HAP). Secretary Panetta informed the Board that in previous 
discussions with the PBV Subcommittee, Board Members had expressed concerns about projects that are 
not progressing and have encouraged staff to develop a policy for when the agency may consider 
rescinding an award of PBVs. Secretary Panetta stated that the staff proposed criteria for rescinding PBV 
awards are now before the Board for review and discussion.  



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ, MINUTES OF THE REGULAR 
MEETING FEBRUARY 26, 2025, AT THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA 
CRUZ, 2160 41ST AVENUE, CAPITOLA, CA 95010 

  
 

  

3 

 
Commissioner Schiffrin requested a quarterly matrix listing all PBV projects in the pipeline broken out 
by where they are in development process, particularly related to key milestones like execution of the 
AHAP. The Board of Commissioners agreed. Staff will take the Board’s direction and begin providing 
this information on a quarterly basis. The Board of Commissioners thanked staff for their work on 
developing these criteria.  
 
Commissioner Schiffrin moved to Adopt Proposed Criteria with the Additional Direction that any Project 
not under AHAP that is already over 36 Months from the date of conditional award would be eligible to 
receive one six month extension and any project under 36 months would be eligible to receive two six 
month extensions. Commissioner Melendrez seconded the motion and it was passed by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Commissioners Berg, Eligio, Martinez Alaniz , Melendrez,  Morales, Schiffrin and 
Schmale 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 6C     Gap Financing for Natural Bridges Apartments Project 
 
Secretary Panetta introduced Deputy Executive Director Graham who informed the Board that staff  
is recommending the Board allocate funds in the amount of up to $3.5M of MTW funding for New 
Horizons in the form of a loan and authorize the Executive Director to enter into all documents necessary 
to provide a loan including but not limited to a promissory note and deed of trust. Deputy Executive 
Director Graham informed the Board that the execution of Resolution 2025-01 will be used to document 
the Board’s decision to allocate these funds for gap financing for the Natural Bridges Apartments project. 
A discussion followed. 
 
Commissioner Schiffrin moved to Execute Resolution 2025-01 for the allocation of up to $3.5M of MTW 
funding for gap financing to close-out the Natural Bridges Apartments project; Commissioner Eligio 
seconded the motion and it was passed by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Commissioners Berg, Eligio, Martinez Alaniz, Melendrez,  Morales, Schiffrin and 
Schmale 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
 



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ, MINUTES OF THE REGULAR 
MEETING FEBRUARY 26, 2025, AT THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA 
CRUZ, 2160 41ST AVENUE, CAPITOLA, CA 95010 

  
 

  

4 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6D Resolutions for 2021 Chanticleer Avenue, Santa Cruz County, and the    
                                                allocation of $1,240,000 for pre-development expenses   
 
Deputy Executive Director Graham reminded the Board that the New Horizons Board of Directors 
authorized the Secretary to purchase the property located at 2021 – 2031 Chanticleer Avenue on October 
2, 2024, during Closed Session. 
 
Deputy Executive Director Graham informed the Board that staff are recommending the Board of 
Commissioners for the Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz further document this approval 
with the execution of Resolution 2025-02. Deputy Executive Director Graham informed the Board that 
the resolution will enable staff to provide the necessary supporting documentation to the Department of 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) to draw down Moving to Work (MTW) funds to acquire the 
property upon execution of the Purchase and Sales Agreement. HUD will require the Housing Authority 
provide documentation to demonstrate the Boards approval of the acquisition, and Resolution 2025-02 
will meet this requirement. A discussion followed. 
 
Deputy Executive Director Graham also informed the Board that staff is  recommending the Board allocate 
funds in the amount of up to $1,240,000 for New Horizons in the form of a loan, and authorize the 
Executive Director to enter into all documents necessary to provide a loan including but not limited to a 
promissory note and deed of trust. These funds will be used for a portion of the indirect pre-development 
costs which include but are not limited to architecture, engineering, insurance, and legal expenses.  Deputy 
Executive Director informed the Board that the execution of Resolution 2025-03 will be used to document 
the Board’s decision to allocate these funds for initial pre-development expenses associated with 
development project at 2021 – 2031 Chanticleer Avenue. A discussion followed. 
 
Commissioner Schiffrin moved to Execute Resolution 2025-02 to further document the Board of 
Commissioners decision to authorize the acquisition of 2021 – 2031 Chanticleer Avenue for $2,900,000, 
and Resolution 2025-03 for the allocation of $1,240,000 for pre-development expenses; Commissioner  
Melendrez seconded the motion and it was passed by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Commissioners Berg, Eligio, Martinez Alaniz, Melendrez,  Morales, Schiffrin and 
Schmale 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
 
Finance Director Aaron Pomeroy entered the Board meeting at 12:15 p.m. 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 6E         Funding of Section 115 Trust for Unfunded Pension Liability 



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ, MINUTES OF THE REGULAR 
MEETING FEBRUARY 26, 2025, AT THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA 
CRUZ, 2160 41ST AVENUE, CAPITOLA, CA 95010 

  
 

  

5 

 
Finance Director Pomeroy informed the Board of Commissioners that the Housing Authority established 
a Section 115 Trust through the Public Agency Retirement Services (PARS) to address its unfunded 
pension liability. Finance Director Pomeroy informed the Board that staff recommends authorizing up to 
$8 million from the Housing Authority’s former Public Housing reserves be used to fund the Section 115 
Trust to address the unfunded pension liability. The Board thanked Finance Director Pomeroy and staff 
for their work on this.  
 
Commissioner Schiffrin moved to Adopt Resolution No. 2025-04 Authorizing the Funding of up to $8 
Million From the Former Public Housing Reserves to the Section 115 Public Agencies Post-Employment 
Benefits Trust Administered by Public Agency Retirement Services (PARS); Commissioner Berg 
seconded the motion and it was passed by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Commissioners Berg, Eligio, Martinez Alaniz, Melendrez, Morales, Schiffrin and Schmale 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT:   None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 6F Housing Choice Voucher Waiting List Re-Opening          
 
Secretary Panetta reminded the Board that at the October Board of Commissioners meeting, staff provided 
the Board of Commissioners with information about various waiting list policies and practices utilized by 
public housing authorities nationally. Two primary approaches were presented for consideration and 
discussion. Standard Waiting List Model (Infrequent Waiting List Openings of a Finite Duration) and 
Alternative Waiting List Model (Continuously Open Waiting or Interest List). Secretary Panetta informed 
the Board that based on the complexity of the continuously open waiting list model, along with concerns 
about this model from HUD and from the Board of Commissioners, staff now recommends moving 
forward utilizing a standard, traditional waiting list opening of a finite duration.  Secretary Panetta 
informed the Board that staff will completely exhaust and deplete the existing Housing Choice Voucher 
waiting list before using the new list once opened.  A discussion followed. 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 7  Written Correspondence 
None. 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 8   Report of Executive Director 
 
Deputy Executive Director Graham updated the Board on the Natural Bridges Apartments and the start of 
the mural. 



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ, MINUTES OF THE REGULAR 
MEETING FEBRUARY 26, 2025, AT THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA 
CRUZ, 2160 41ST AVENUE, CAPITOLA, CA 95010 

  
 

  

6 

 
Deputy Executive Director Graham updated the Board on the Chanticleer Avenue property. 
 
Executive Director Panetta updated the Board of progress of the Bill AB 282 Discrimination: Housing: 
Source of Income. The Board requested that a letter from the Board in support of this bill be on the March 
Agenda. Staff will follow the Board’s direction. 
 
Executive Director Panetta updated the Board on the potential battery storage facility in Watsonville that 
Board members expressed interest and concern about.  
 
Executive Director Panetta updated the Board on the changes in HUD administration and provided a 
legislative and funding update. 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 9  Reports from Board Members 
None. 
 
The Board of Commissioners recessed the meeting at 1:02 p.m. 
The Board of Commissioners meeting was called back to order at 1:04 p.m. 
The Board of Commissioners entered Closed Session at 1:04 p.m. 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 10  Closed Session 
   

A. Potential Litigation 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 11  Report on Closed Session 
 
No Reportable Action Taken. 
 
The Board of Commissioners exited Closed Session at 1:30 p.m. 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 12  Adjournment 
 
The Board of Commissioners meeting was adjourned at 1:30 p.m. 
 
I hereby certify that these minutes were approved by the Housing Authority of the County of  
Santa Cruz, on the Twenty Sixth Day of March 2025. 
         _______________________   

Chairperson of the Authority 



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ, MINUTES OF THE REGULAR 
MEETING FEBRUARY 26, 2025, AT THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA 
CRUZ, 2160 41ST AVENUE, CAPITOLA, CA 95010 

  
 

  

7 

ATTEST: ____________________ 
 
Secretary 
 



 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
MEETING DATE: March 26, 2025   ITEM NUMBER:    3B 

 
        FROM:      Finance Director   
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT:   Audited Financial Statements for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024  
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Approve the Agency-Wide Audited Financial Statements for Fiscal 

Year Ending June 30, 2024 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
BACKGROUND SUMMARY: 
 
The financial statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024 were prepared by the Housing 
Authority of the County of Santa Cruz in the format prescribed by the requirements of the 
Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB).   
 
The agency’s auditor, Novogradac & Company LLP, has issued an unmodified (clean) opinion 
on the financial statements after conducting an audit in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards.  A summary of the auditors’ results can be found on page 58 of the report. No 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies were identified regarding internal controls over 
financial reporting and federal awards. There were no findings relating to the financial 
statements and no findings or questioned costs relating to the federal awards.  The auditor opined 
that the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the 
agency as of June 30, 2024.  
 
Upon approval by the Board of Commissioners, the audit report will be submitted to the 
appropriate regulatory bodies and will be available on the Housing Authority’s website for 
review by other interested parties.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve the Audited Financial Statements for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 for the Housing 
Authority of the County of Santa Cruz. 
 
 
 
 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ 
 













































































































































































  

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
MEETING DATE: March 26, 2025   ITEM NUMBER: 3C 
 

FROM:      Executive Director   
_________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT: AB 282: Source of Income Discrimination 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Endorse AB 282: Discrimination: Housing: Source of Income 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
BACKGROUND SUMMARY: 
 
At the October 2, 2024 Board of Commissioners meeting, staff shared information regarding 
limitations of the Housing Opportunities Act (SB 329), which prohibits landlords from discriminating 
against prospective tenants on the basis of participation in rental assistance programs and therefore 
protects voucher households from source of income discrimination, but which also prohibits landlords 
from establishing a preference that benefits participants in rental assistance programs. The Board 
authorized staff to engage in advocacy to propose an amendment to SB 329. 
 
On January 22, 2025 Assemblymember Pellerin introduced AB 282 Discrimination: Housing: Source 
of Income. AB 282, co-authored by Senator John Laird, explicitly states that it shall not constitute 
discrimination based on source of income to prioritize applicants for tenancy who qualify for or 
participate in government sponsored rental assistance or subsidy programs, vouchers, or certificate 
systems. 
 
At this time, staff seek approval of the Board of Commissioners to endorse AB 282. Upon the 
Board’s approval, staff will continue to engage in advocacy to promote AB 282. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Endorse AB 282: Discrimination: Housing: Source of Income 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ 



  

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
MEETING DATE: March 26, 2025   ITEM NUMBER: 3C 
 

FROM:      Executive Director   
_________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT: AB 282: Source of Income Discrimination 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Endorse AB 282: Discrimination: Housing: Source of Income 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
BACKGROUND SUMMARY: 
 
At the October 2, 2024 Board of Commissioners meeting, staff shared information regarding 
limitations of the Housing Opportunities Act (SB 329), which prohibits landlords from discriminating 
against prospective tenants on the basis of participation in rental assistance programs and therefore 
protects voucher households from source of income discrimination, but which also prohibits landlords 
from establishing a preference that benefits participants in rental assistance programs. The Board 
authorized staff to engage in advocacy to propose an amendment to SB 329. 
 
On January 22, 2025 Assemblymember Pellerin introduced AB 282 Discrimination: Housing: Source 
of Income. AB 282, co-authored by Senator John Laird, explicitly states that it shall not constitute 
discrimination based on source of income to prioritize applicants for tenancy who qualify for or 
participate in government sponsored rental assistance or subsidy programs, vouchers, or certificate 
systems. 
 
At this time, staff seek approval of the Board of Commissioners to endorse AB 282. Upon the 
Board’s approval, staff will continue to engage in advocacy to promote AB 282. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Endorse AB 282: Discrimination: Housing: Source of Income 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ 



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
MEETING DATE: March 26, 2025   ITEM NUMBER: 6A 
 
        FROM: Executive Director 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing, Review and Consideration of Draft 2025 Annual PHA Plan, 5 Year 
PHA Plan, Housing Choice Voucher Administrative Plan, and MTW Supplement for the Housing 
Authority of the County of Santa Cruz 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Drafts of the 2025 Annual PHA Plan, 5 Year PHA Plan, 
Housing Choice Voucher Program Administrative Plan, and Moving to Work Supplement to the 
PHA Plan. 
    Adopt Resolution No. 2025-05: Authorizing Execution of PHA 
Certification of Compliance with PHA Plans and Related Regulations; Board Resolution to 
Accompany the Annual PHA Plan for the Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz. 
 

Adopt Resolution No. 2025-06: Authorizing Execution of MTW 
Certifications of Compliance with Regulations; Board Resolution to Accompany the MTW 
Supplement to the Annual PHA Plan for the Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
BACKGROUND SUMMARY: 
 
The Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz has prepared the Annual PHA Plan, 5 Year 
PHA Plan, Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) Administrative Plan, and MTW Supplement to the 
PHA Plan as mandated by HUD. This comprehensive set of plans serves as a resource for HUD, 
participants engaged in PHA programs, and the public. It summarizes fundamental information 
about the PHA along with discretionary policies, regulations, operational protocols governing its 
various programs and services, and current and planned Moving to Work (MTW) activities and 
waivers. 
 
In January 2025, staff reviewed the draft plans with the Resident Advisory Board (RAB). The 
RAB supported the draft documents as presented. In February 2025, the Board of Commissioners 
reviewed the draft plans and engaged in constructive discussion.   
 
Public Comment Period 
Copies of the draft Annual PHA Agency Plan, 5 Year PHA Plan, HCV Administrative Plan, and 
MTW Supplement, have been made available to the public through the Housing Authority’s 
website. Additionally, since Friday, February 7, 2025 notices inviting public review and comment 
on these plans have been continuously published every Friday, in both English and Spanish, in the 
Santa Cruz Sentinel, the Watsonville Pajaronian, and the Hollister Freelance. 
 
To date, staff have received no public comments on the posted documents. Two required in-person 
public hearings are scheduled consecutively on March 26, 2025. The first hearing will address 
general aspects of the Agency Plan, Administrative Plan, and related documents. The second 



hearing will focus specifically on MTW Agency Specific Waiver(s). 
 
Copies of the draft Annual PHA Plan, 5 Year PHA Plan, Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) 
Administrative Plan, and MTW Supplement to the PHA Plan were provided to the Board of 
Commissioners at the February meeting, and are available at the Housing Authority’s website: 
https://hacosantacruz.org/general-information/agency-plans/   
 
The plans will remain under consideration until the Board of Commissioners receives all public 
feedback. Following this, the Board will direct staff on any necessary modifications, vote to 
approve the plan documents, and the Chairperson shall then be authorized to execute resolutions, 
including: 
 
1. A resolution authorizing the Execution of PHA Certifications of Compliance with PHA Plan 

and Related Regulations for Standard and Streamlined PHA Plans. 
2. A resolution authorizing the submission of the MTW Supplement and making required 

certifications and agreements with HUD with its submission and implementation. 
 

These resolutions and certifications are now recommended to be adopted by the Board. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Drafts of the 2025 Annual PHA Plan, 5 Year PHA Plan, 
Housing Choice Voucher Program Administrative Plan, and Moving to Work Supplement to the 
PHA Plan. 
    Adopt Resolution No. 2025-05: Authorizing Execution of PHA 
Certification of Compliance with PHA Plans and Related Regulations; Board Resolution to 
Accompany the Annual PHA Plan for the Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz. 
 

Adopt Resolution No. 2025-06: Authorizing Execution of MTW 
Certifications of Compliance with Regulations; Board Resolution to Accompany the MTW 
Supplement to the Annual PHA Plan for the Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. Draft 2025 50077-ST-HCV-HP Certification – Housing Authority, for Execution 
2. Draft 2025 50075-MTW Certification – Housing Authority, for Execution 

https://hacosantacruz.org/general-information/agency-plans/


 

                                                                                          Page 1 of 3              formHUD-50077-ST-HCV-HP (3/31/2024) 

Certifications of Compliance with 

PHA Plan and Related Regulations 

(Standard, Troubled, HCV-Only, and 

High Performer PHAs) 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 

Office of Public and Indian Housing 

OMB No. 2577-0226 

Expires 3/31/2024 

 

                    

 

PHA Certifications of Compliance with PHA Plan, Civil Rights, and Related Laws and Regulations  

including PHA Plan Elements that Have Changed 

Acting on behalf of the Board of Commissioners of the Public Housing Agency (PHA) listed below, as its Chairperson or other 

authorized PHA official if there is no Board of Commissioners, I approve the submission of the 2025 5-Year Plan and 2025 Annual 

PHA Plan, hereinafter referred to as” the Plan”,  of which this document is a part, and make the following certification and 

agreements with the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)  for the PHA fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024, in 

connection with the submission of the Plan and implementation thereof:  

1. The Plan is consistent with the applicable comprehensive housing affordability strategy (or any plan incorporating such 

strategy) for the jurisdiction in which the PHA is located (24 CFR § 91.2).  

2. The Plan contains a certification by the appropriate State or local officials that the Plan is consistent with the applicable 

Consolidated Plan, which includes a certification that requires the preparation of an Analysis of Impediments (AI) to Fair 

Housing Choice, or Assessment of Fair Housing (AFH) when applicable, for the PHA's jurisdiction and a description of the 

manner in which the PHA Plan is consistent with the applicable Consolidated Plan (24 CFR §§ 91.2, 91.225, 91.325, and 

91.425).   

3. The PHA has established a Resident Advisory Board or Boards, the membership of which represents the residents assisted by 

the PHA, consulted with this Resident Advisory Board or Boards in developing the Plan, including any changes or revisions 

to the policies and programs identified in the Plan before they were implemented, and considered the recommendations of the 

RAB (24 CFR 903.13). The PHA has included in the Plan submission a copy of the recommendations made by the Resident 

Advisory Board or Boards and a description of the manner in which the Plan addresses these recommendations.  

4. The PHA provides assurance as part of this certification that: 

(i) The Resident Advisory Board had an opportunity to review and comment on the changes to the policies and programs 

before implementation by the PHA; 

(ii) The changes were duly approved by the PHA Board of Directors (or similar governing body); and  

(iii) The revised policies and programs are available for review and inspection, at the principal office of the PHA during 

normal business hours. 

5. The PHA made the proposed Plan and all information relevant to the public hearing available for public inspection at least 45 

days before the hearing, published a notice that a hearing would be held and conducted a hearing to discuss the Plan and 

invited public comment.  

6. The PHA certifies that it will carry out the public housing program of the agency in conformity with title VI of the Civil 

Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000d-2000d—4), the Fair Housing Act (42 U.S.C. 3601-19), Section 504 of the 

Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 794),  title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.), and 

other applicable civil rights requirements and that it will affirmatively further fair housing in the administration of the 

program. In addition, if it administers a Housing Choice Voucher Program, the PHA certifies that it will administer the 

program in conformity with the Fair Housing Act, title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation 

Act of 1973, title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act, and other applicable civil rights requirements, and that it will 

affirmatively further fair housing in the administration of the program.  

7. The PHA will affirmatively further fair housing, which means that it will take meaningful actions to further the goals 

identified in the Assessment of Fair Housing (AFH) conducted in accordance with the requirements of 24 CFR § 5.150 

through 5.180, that it will take no action that is materially inconsistent with its obligation to affirmatively further fair housing, 

and that it will address fair housing issues and contributing factors in its programs, in accordance with 24 CFR § 903.7(o)(3). 

The PHA will fulfill the requirements at 24 CFR § 903.7(o) and 24 CFR § 903.15(d). Until such time as the PHA is required 

to submit an AFH, the PHA will fulfill the requirements at 24 CFR § 903.7(o) promulgated prior to August 17, 2015, which 

means that it examines its programs or proposed programs; identifies any impediments to fair housing choice within those 

programs; addresses those impediments in a reasonable fashion in view of the resources available; works with local 

jurisdictions to implement any of the jurisdiction’s initiatives to affirmatively further fair housing that require the PHA’s 

involvement; and maintains records reflecting these analyses and actions.    

8. For PHA Plans that include a policy for site-based waiting lists:  

• The PHA regularly submits required data to HUD's 50058 PIC/IMS Module in an accurate, complete and timely manner 

(as specified in PIH Notice 2011-65);  



___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
                    Page 2 of 3                                    form HUD-50077-ST-HCV-HP (3/31/2024) 

• The system of site-based waiting lists provides for full disclosure to each applicant in the selection of the development in 

which to reside, including basic information about available sites; and an estimate of the period of time the applicant 

would likely have to wait to be admitted to units of different sizes and types at each site;  

• Adoption of a site-based waiting list would not violate any court order or settlement agreement or be inconsistent with a 

pending complaint brought by HUD;  

• The PHA shall take reasonable measures to assure that such a waiting list is consistent with affirmatively furthering fair 

housing; and 

• The PHA provides for review of its site-based waiting list policy to determine if it is consistent with civil rights laws and 

certifications, as specified in 24 CFR 903.7(o)(1). 

9. The PHA will comply with the prohibitions against discrimination on the basis of age pursuant to the Age Discrimination Act 

of 1975. 

10. In accordance with 24 CFR § 5.105(a)(2), HUD’s Equal Access Rule, the PHA will not make a determination of eligibility 

for housing based on sexual orientation, gender identify, or marital status and will make no inquiries concerning the gender 

identification or sexual orientation of an applicant for or occupant of HUD-assisted housing.  

11. The PHA will comply with the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968 and 24 CFR Part 41, Policies and Procedures for the 

Enforcement of Standards and Requirements for Accessibility by the Physically Handicapped.  

12. The PHA will comply with the requirements of Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, Employment 

Opportunities for Low-or Very-Low Income Persons, and with its implementing regulation at 24 CFR Part 135. 

13. The PHA will comply with acquisition and relocation requirements of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property 

Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 and implementing regulations at 49 CFR Part 24 as applicable.  

14. The PHA will take appropriate affirmative action to award contracts to minority and women's business enterprises under 24 

CFR 5.105(a).  

15. The PHA will provide the responsible entity or HUD any documentation that the responsible entity or HUD needs to carry 

out its review under the National Environmental Policy Act and other related authorities in accordance with 24 CFR Part 58 

or Part 50, respectively.  

16. With respect to public housing the PHA will comply with Davis-Bacon or HUD determined wage rate requirements under 

Section 12 of the United States Housing Act of 1937 and the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act.  

17. The PHA will keep records in accordance with 2 CFR 200.333 and facilitate an effective audit to determine compliance with 

program requirements.  

18. The PHA will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act, the Residential Lead-Based Paint Hazard 

Reduction Act of 1992, and 24 CFR Part 35.  

19. The PHA will comply with the policies, guidelines, and requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Uniform Administrative 

Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Financial Assistance, including but not limited to 

submitting the assurances required under 24 CFR §§ 1.5, 3.115, 8.50, and 107.25 by submitting an SF-424, including the 

required assurances in SF-424B or D, as applicable. 

20. The PHA will undertake only activities and programs covered by the Plan in a manner consistent with its Plan and will utilize 

covered grant funds only for activities that are approvable under the regulations and included in its Plan.  

21. All attachments to the Plan have been and will continue to be available at all times and all locations that the PHA Plan is 

available for public inspection. All required supporting documents have been made available for public inspection along with 

the Plan and additional requirements at the primary business office of the PHA and at all other times and locations identified 

by the PHA in its PHA Plan and will continue to be made available at least at the primary business office of the PHA.  

22. The PHA certifies that it is in compliance with applicable Federal statutory and regulatory requirements, including the 

Declaration of Trust(s).   

 

Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz  CA072 

_________________________________________  __________________________________________ 

PHA Name        PHA Number/HA Code  

 
_____ Annual PHA Plan for Fiscal Year 2024      _____    5-Year PHA Plan for Fiscal Years 2026-2030   

 

I hereby certify that all the information stated herein, as well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith, is true and accurate. Warning:  HUD will 

prosecute false claims and statements. Conviction may result in criminal and/or civil penalties.  (18 U.S.C. 1001, 1010, 1012; 31 U.S.C. 3729, 3802). 

Name of Executive Director       Name Board Chairman 

Jennifer Panetta Providence Martinez Alaniz 

Signature      Date  Signature      Date 

X X 



___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
                    Page 3 of 3                                    form HUD-50077-ST-HCV-HP (3/31/2024) 

The United States Department of Housing and Urban Development is authorized to solicit the information requested in this form by virtue of Title 12, U.S. Code, Section 1701 
et seq., and regulations promulgated thereunder at Title 12, Code of Federal Regulations.  Responses to the collection of information are required to obtain a benefit or to 
retain a benefit.  The information requested does not lend itself to confidentiality.  This information is collected to ensure compliance with PHA Plan, Civil Rights, and related 
laws and regulations including PHA plan elements that have changed. 
 
Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to average 0.16 hours per year per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching 
existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. HUD may not collect this information, and 
respondents are not required to complete this form, unless it displays a currently valid OMB Control Number.   



MTW Supplement to the Annual PHA Plan OMB No. 2577-0226 
Expires:  03/31/2024 

 

 

 
Page 20 of 29 form HUD-50075-MTW (01/2021) 

MTW CERTIFICATIONS OF COMPLIANCE 
 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 
OFFICE OF PUBLIC AND INDIAN HOUSING 

 

Certifications of Compliance with Regulations: 
Board Resolution to Accompany the MTW Supplement to the Annual PHA Plan 

 

Acting on behalf of the Board of Commissioners of the Moving to Work Public Housing Agency (MTW PHA) listed below, as its 
Chairperson or other authorized MTW PHA official if there is no Board of Commissioners, I approve the submission of the MTW 
Supplement to the Annual PHA Plan for the MTW PHA Fiscal Year beginning (                          ), hereinafter referred to as "the MTW 
Supplement", of which this document is a part and make the following certifications and agreements with the Department of Housing and 
Urban Development (HUD) in connection with the submission of the MTW Supplement and implementation thereof: 
 
(1) The PHA made the proposed MTW Supplement and all information relevant to the public hearing available for public inspection at 

least 45 days before the hearing, published a notice that a hearing would be held and conducted a hearing to discuss the MTW 
Supplement and invited public comment. 
 

(2) The MTW PHA took into consideration public and resident comments (including those of its Resident Advisory Board(s) or tenant 
associations, as applicable) before approval of the MTW Supplement by the Board of Commissioners or Board of Directors in order 
to incorporate any public comments into the annual MTW Supplement. 

 

(3) The MTW PHA certifies that the Board of Directors has reviewed and approved the budget for the Capital Fund Program grants 
contained in the Capital Fund Program Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report, form HUD-50075.1 (or successor 
form as required by HUD). 

 

(4) The MTW PHA will carry out the MTW Supplement in conformity with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000d-
2000d-4), the Fair Housing Act (42 U.S.C. 3601-19), section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 794), and title II of 
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) all regulations implementing these authorities; and other 
applicable Federal, State, and local civil rights laws. 

 

(5) The MTW Supplement is consistent with the applicable comprehensive housing affordability strategy (or any plan incorporating 
such strategy) for the jurisdiction in which the PHA is located. 

 

(6) The MTW Supplement contains a certification by the appropriate state or local officials that the Plan is consistent with the applicable 
Consolidated Plan, which includes a certification that requires the preparation of an Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing 
Choice, for the MTW PHA's jurisdiction and a description of the manner in which the MTW Supplement is consistent with the 
applicable Consolidated Plan. 

 

(7) The MTW PHA  will affirmatively further fair housing, which means that it will: (i) take meaningful actions to further the 
goals identified by the Assessment of Fair Housing (AFH) conducted in accordance with the requirements of 24 CFR 5.150-
5.180 and 903.15; (ii) take no action that is materially inconsistent with its obligation to affirmatively further fair housing; and 
(iii) address fair housing issues and contributing factors in its programs, in accordance with 24 CFR 903.7(o)(3) and 
903.15(d). Note: Until the PHA is required to submit an AFH, and that AFH has been accepted by HUD, the PHA must 
follow the certification requirements of 24 CFR 903.7(o) in effect prior to August 17, 2015. Under these requirements, the 
PHA will be considered in compliance with the certification requirements of 24 CFR 903.7(o)(1)-(3) and 903.15(d) if it: (i) 
examines its programs or proposed programs; (ii) identifies any impediments to fair housing choice within those programs; 
(iii) addresses those impediments in a reasonable fashion in view of the resources available; (iv) works with local jurisdictions 
to implement any of the jurisdiction’s initiatives to affirmatively further fair housing that require the PHA’s involvement; and 
(v) maintains records reflecting these analyses and actions.  

 

(8) The MTW PHA will comply with the prohibitions against discrimination on the basis of age pursuant to the Age Discrimination Act 
of 1975 and HUD’s implementing regulations at24 C.F.R. Part 146. 

 

(9) In accordance with 24 CFR 5.105(a)(2), HUD’s Equal Access Rule, the MTW PHA will not make a determination of eligibility for 
housing based on sexual orientation, gender identify, or marital status and will make no inquiries concerning the gender 
identification or sexual orientation of an applicant for or occupant of HUD-assisted housing. 

 

(10) The MTW PHA will comply with the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968 and 24 CFR Part 41, Policies and Procedures for the 
Enforcement of Standards and Requirements for Accessibility by the Physically Handicapped. 

 

(11)  The MTW PHA will comply with the requirements of section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, Employment 
Opportunities for Low- or Very-Low Income Persons, and with its implementing regulation at 24 CFR Part 135. 

 

(12) The MTW PHA will comply with requirements with regard to a drug free workplace required by 24 CFR Part 24, Subpart F. 
 

(13) The MTW PHA will comply with requirements with regard to compliance with restrictions on lobbying required by 24 CFR Part 87, 
together with disclosure forms if required by this Part, and with restrictions on payments to influence Federal Transactions, in 
accordance with the Byrd Amendment. 

 

(14) The MTW PHA will comply with acquisition and relocation requirements of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property 
Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 and implementing regulations at 49 CFR Part 24 as applicable. 



MTW Supplement to the Annual PHA Plan OMB No. 2577-0226 
Expires:  03/31/2024 

 

 

 
Page 21 of 29 form HUD-50075-MTW (01/2021) 

 

(15) The MTW PHA will take appropriate affirmative action to award contracts to minority and women's business enterprises under 24 
CFR 5.105(a). 

 

(16) The MTW PHA will provide HUD or the responsible entity any documentation needed to carry out its review under the National 
Environmental Policy Act and other related authorities in accordance with 24 CFR Part 58. Regardless of who acts as the responsible 
entity, the MTW PHA will maintain documentation that verifies compliance with environmental requirements pursuant to 24 Part 58 
and 24 CFR Part 50 and will make this documentation available to HUD upon its request. 

 

(17) With respect to public housing and applicable local, non-traditional development the MTW PHA will comply with Davis-Bacon or 
HUD determined wage rate requirements under section 12 of the United States Housing Act of 1937 and the Contract Work Hours 
and Safety Standards Act. 

 

(18) The MTW PHA will keep records in accordance with 2 CFR 200.333-200.337 and facilitate an effective audit to determine 
compliance with program requirements. 

 

(19) The MTW PHA will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act and 24 CFR Part 35. 
 

(20) The MTW PHA will comply with the policies, guidelines, and requirements of 2 CFR Part 200. 
 

(21) The MTW PHA must fulfill its responsibilities to comply with and ensure enforcement of housing quality standards as required in 
PIH Notice 2011-45, or successor notice, for any local, non-traditional program units. The MTW PHA must fulfill its responsibilities 
to comply with and ensure enforcement of Housing Quality Standards, as defined in 24 CFR Part 982, for any Housing Choice 
Voucher units under administration. 

 

(22) The MTW PHA will undertake only activities and programs covered by the Moving to Work Operations Notice in a manner 
consistent with its MTW Supplement and will utilize covered grant funds only for activities that are approvable under the Moving to 
Work Operations Notice and included in its MTW Supplement. MTW Waivers activities being implemented by the agency must fall 
within the safe harbors outlined in Appendix I of the Moving to Work Operations Notice and/or HUD approved Agency-Specific or 
Safe Harbor Waivers. 

 

(23) All attachments to the MTW Supplement have been and will continue to be available at all times and all locations that the MTW 
Supplement is available for public inspection. All required supporting documents have been made available for public inspection 
along with the MTW Supplement and additional requirements at the primary business office of the PHA and at all other times and 
locations identified by the MTW PHA in its MTW Supplement and will continue to be made available at least at the primary 
business office of the MTW PHA. 

 
 
 
_________________________________________ ______________________________________ 
MTW PHA NAME MTW PHA NUMBER/HA CODE 
 
I hereby certify that all the information stated herein, as well as any information provided in the accompaniment 
herewith, is true and accurate. Warning:  HUD will prosecute false claims and statements. Conviction may result in 
criminal and/or civil penalties.  (18 U.S.C. 1001, 1010, 1012; 31 U.S.C. 3729, 3802). 

 
 
_________________________________________ ______________________________________ 
NAME OF AUTHORIZED OFFICIAL TITLE 
 
 
_________________________________________ ______________________________________ 
SIGNATURE DATE 
 
* Must be signed by either the Chairperson or Secretary of the Board of the MTW PHA's legislative body.  This certification cannot 

be signed by an employee unless authorized by the MTW PHA Board to do so.  If this document is not signed by the Chairperson 
or Secretary, documentation such as the by-laws or authorizing board resolution must accompany this certification. 

 



  
 

1 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
MEETING DATE: March 26, 2025   ITEM NUMBER: 6B 
 
        FROM:  Executive Director 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBJECT: Role of the Development Subcommittee   
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Expand the Role of the Development Subcommittee  
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
BACKGROUND SUMMARY: 
 
In June 2024, the Board of Commissioners established a Development Subcommittee following a 
staff recommendation to "establish a subcommittee to provide guidance to staff on evaluating and 
assessing acquisition and development opportunities before bringing those opportunities to the 
Board for consideration." The intention behind this recommendation was to create a mechanism 
for staff to obtain early feedback on potential acquisition opportunities from a subset of 
Commissioners. This approach has demonstrated to be effective in guiding staff through the initial 
site assessment to ensure alignment with Board priorities. The Chanticleer Avenue and Portola 
Drive acquisitions are two examples in which the early guidance from the Subcommittee ensured 
staff were effectively using time and resources on initiatives that aligned with Board priorities and 
minimized the risk of presenting incongruous opportunities to the full Board. This model has 
proven to be effective and has been extremely helpful to staff. 
 
With these two projects proceeding through the Option Terms, staff are recommending a slight 
expansion of the Subcommittee’s role to efficiently use staff time and resources to secure full 
Board support related to the design and planning of future development projects. Specifically, staff 
recommends that in addition to evaluating and assessing acquisition and development 
opportunities, the Subcommittee would also engage in a preliminary meeting with the architect 
and/or consultants to review initial project elements to provide feedback on design, massing, and 
unit count for project planning. Following the Subcommittee feedback on the general design, the 
architect would present the draft design to the full Board for review and approval. At this stage, 
the Subcommittee's involvement will conclude, and the full Board will receive monthly updates 
on all projects in the development pipeline through the Directors Report or other staff reports as 
necessary. This clear delineation allows the subcommittee to provide valuable early-stage 
guidance to staff, while also ensuring the full Board has ongoing oversight of all projects. 
 
If the Board agrees to the expansion of the Subcommittee role as described above, staff will invite 
the Subcommittee to meet with the selected architect to review and provide feedback on general 
design elements for the Chanticleer Avenue project. The expanded roles will remain in effect for 
all projects unless modified by the Board.   
 
RECOMMENDATION: Expand the Role of the Development Subcommittee
 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ 



1 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

MEETING DATE: March 26, 2025 ITEM NUMBER:  8  

FROM: Exec. Director; Deputy Exec. Director   
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: Director’s Report – March 26, 2025 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION: Receive Report 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

BACKGROUND SUMMARY: 
Please call or e-mail me with questions you might have on any of the Agenda Items for the March 26, 2025 
meeting.  My phone number is (831) 454-5931 and my email address is jennyp@hacosantacruz.org.   

Natural Bridges Apartments – The project is fully leased and 100% occupied. The grand opening event 
is scheduled for May 9th at 11am, and the guest speakers include but are not limited to 
Congressmember Jimmy Panetta and Santa Cruz Mayor Fred Keeley. The grand opening will be hosted 
by the Housing Authority as event in collaboration with Affordable Housing Month.  

Due to weather the artist for the mural has delayed the start date to March 24th. Staff are working with 
Michael Daniel Media to create a 3 – 5 minute video to document the mural painting and the grand 
opening event, highlighting how the symbolism of the mural art reflects the transformation of the 
Housing Authority, and the significance of the completion of the Natural Bridges project.    

Chanticleer Avenue - New Horizons executed the option agreement with the sellers to purchase 2021 – 
2031 Chanticleer on October 18, 2024. The initial escrow deposit of $50,000 has been released to the 
sellers. The first extension of the initial term of the option was executed on February 10, 2025. This no-
cost, 60-day extension offers New Horizons the ability to further engage in the due diligence and to 
finalize the Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) review. New Horizons may exercise a second option 
extension for an additional 120-days which includes an escrow deposit of $70,000.  

The California State Historic Preservation Officer (SHPO) provided a response to our NEPA review 
under Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 to assess the potential that a federally 
assisted project may affect a historic property. Staff have consulted with outside General Counsel and 
the County Department of Community Development and Infrastructure to question the determination by 
SHPO. Staff are in the process of conducting outreach to SHPO to further clarify the requirements 
since staff believe their findings fall under CEQA and are not applicable to this project. If staff 
confirm the SHPO determination is correct, this may delay the closing by approximately 90 days, 
however, it will not prevent New Horizons from proceeding with the acquisition. If the SHPO 
determination is rescinded, staff anticipate the property closing to occur in April or early May.  



2 
 

 
The March meeting for New Horizons Board of Directors includes the staff recommendation for a contract 
award for the architect. Upon contract execution staff will start working with the architect to coordinate 
design review meetings including meeting with the New Horizons Board of Directors.  
 
Portola Drive – The Option Agreement to purchase 3501 Portola Drive was executed on March 12, 2025. 
The option consideration and option deposit of $50,100 has been transferred to the title company for 
escrow. The initial option term is 120 days, with a first no-cost option to extend for an additional 60 days, 
and a second option to extend with an additional escrow deposit of $100,00 for an additional 120 days. The 
total maximum option period with extensions is 300 days.  The escrow deposits are fully refundable to New 
Horizons if the parties are unable to agree on a scope and cost of potential environmental remediation. 
Additionally, the sellers have agreed to cover the initial cost of any environmental remediation at or below 
$250K. New Horizons will retain Dudek to conduct the environmental due diligence services, the required 
NEPA review and prepare cost estimates for potential environmental remediation. Staff will share the 
outcome of the Phase II environmental assessment with the Board to outline any significant environmental 
conditions and the estimated costs for remediation. 
 
NAHRO Commissioners Training Opportunity – The National Association of Housing and 
Redevelopment Officials (NAHRO) offer training that is developed specifically for Housing Authority 
Board Commissioners. The following training course is being offered remotely via zoom from Tuesday 
April 29 – Thursday May 1, 2025, from 10am – 1pm each day. The course is available to all HACSC 
Commissioners. Please contact Courtney Byrd if you are interested in attending. 
 

Course Description 
Take a deeper dive into the monitoring and oversight functions of housing agencies. You’ll enhance 
your understanding of agency programs, policies, and budgets, while you learn more about ensuring 
your agency is on the right track and helping your agency achieve its mission and goals. This course 
covers the importance of commissioners involvement in strategic planning and the benefits this 
activity has in shaping the future of the agency and its ability to meet the unique needs of their 
community. Join us to build your skills and comfort with all those acronyms and complex things 
going on in your agency. 
 

Follow Up on Data Regarding Rent Burdens – At the February Board of Commissioners meeting, the 
Board discussed requesting a waiver that would allow program participants to lease housing with rent 
burdens above 40% at the time of initial lease up. During the staff report, staff emphasized that most of the 
families with high rent burdens of over 40% were either over-housed (in units that are larger than their 
voucher size) or were prorated families. During this discussion, a Commissioner requested information 
about how many of the families with high rent burdens are neither over-housed nor prorated. Currently, 69 
households (which represents 1.1% of the total program size) are households with rent burdens over 40% 
who are neither over-housed nor prorated. 
 
Funding Update – On March 14th, the Senate approved a year-long Continuing Resolution (CR) that would 
keep the government open until the end of the Federal Fiscal Year (FFY), September 30, 2025. The bill 
maintains level funding from FY 2024 to FY 2025, except for certain anomalies that would provide 
increases to specific programs. While housing programs fared relatively well compared to the original 



3 
 

Senate and House proposals released last summer, there is some inconsistency between analysis of industry 
analysts in what these anomalies will translate to at an agency specific level for the Housing Choice 
Voucher (HCV) program, with some analysts expecting the anomaly provided for the Housing Assistance 
Payments account to fully fund voucher renewals based on HUD’s last publicly released forecast, and 
others suggesting that a national level proration may still be needed. HUD has 60 days following the 
approval of the CR to provide agency specific funding levels to all PHAs.  
 
A new concern has been raised about adequacy of funding for the Emergency Housing Voucher (EHV) 
Program. EHVs are vouchers for persons experiencing homelessness, originally funded through the 
American Rescue Plan Act (ARP) during COVID. Section 3202 of the ARP appropriated $5 billion in 
funding for new incremental EHV vouchers. This funding was anticipated to cover the cost of the program 
for ten years. Unfortunately, it appears that the costs of the program have exceeded original projects, and 
HUD expects to run out of funds in 2026, just five years after the program was implemented. On March 6, 
2025, HUD sent a letter to housing authorities stating that it will obligate a final allocation for all EHV 
funds that remain available to HUD under the ARP. The notice goes on to state that “after this final 
allocation, the Department will provide no additional EHV HAP Renewal funding allocations to PHAs, but 
the amount allocated is anticipated to extend beyond the end of CY 2025 and those remaining amounts will 
be available to cover HAP costs in 2026.” The notice notes that PHAs should not expect any additional 
funding for this program beyond the final allocation amount, and that the Department will provide 
additional information on options for managing EHVs in future notices. There are currently 274 households 
participating in our EHV program. 
 
Housing Authority staff have been engaged in advocacy related to both overall HCV funding, as well as 
EHV funding, meeting with staff from Rep. Panetta and Rep. Lofgren’s offices, as well as Senator Schiff’s 
office. 
 
New Horizons Senior Faire 

 
 
On Friday February 28th, New Horizons hosted our first ever Senior Resource Fair, as part of our New 
Horizons Programs and Services. The Senior Resource Fair took place at the London Nelson Community 
room in Santa Cruz, with over 130 seniors in attendance. The Resource Fair included 16 community 
partners, including Lift Line, Meals on Wheels, Elderday Adult Healthcare, County Parks, Senior Networks 
Services, Vista Center, Senior Legal Services, County Department of Human Services, United Way and 
more. Each organization that tabled at the event offered valuable information and services to attendees. 



4 
 

Housing Authority staff received highly positive feedback from both community partners and attendees, 
and it was rewarding to see the positive connections and engagements taking place. An additional Senior 
Resource Fair is also planned for South County.  



‘Quiet panic’ as national rental assistance program set to run out of cash 

by Ben Christopher March 18, 2025 

The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development building in Washington, D.C. on 
March 30, 2020. Photo by Graeme Sloan, SIPA USA via Reuters 

Welcome to CalMatters, the only nonprofit newsroom devoted solely to covering issues 
that affect all Californians. Sign up for WhatMatters to receive the latest news and 
commentary on the most important issues in the Golden State. 

A $5 billion pot of federal money set aside to help people on the verge of homelessness pay 
the rent is running out of cash — and no one has a plan to keep the roughly 60,000 renters, 
more than 15,000 of them in California — from losing their housing after the last dollar is 
spent. 

News of the imminent expiration of the Emergency Housing Voucher program came in 
a March 6 letter the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development sent to local 

https://calmatters.org/author/ben-christopher/
https://calmatters.org/subscribe-to-calmatters/whatmatters
https://www.hud.gov/program_offices/public_indian_housing/ehv/dashboard
https://calmatters.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/03/EHV_Funding_HUD_March6.pdf


public housing authorities, the agencies that administer federal rental housing assistance 
programs. 

A final payment this spring may allow some agencies to keep their emergency programs 
running into 2026, the letter reads. But housing authorities were advised to move forward 
with “the expectation that no additional funding from HUD will be forthcoming.” 

For the housing authority staff who received the letter, it remains unclear whether the 
program is winding down simply because it has run out of funds on its own accord or 
whether it represents a policy shift from the Trump administration, which has been on an 
aggressive and often uncoordinated cost cutting tear across the federal bureaucracy. 

The letter came as a shock to Lisa Jones, CEO of the San Diego Housing Commission. 
Jones said the commission could conceivably pay its share of the rent for the nearly 400 
San Diego renters currently assisted by the program through December. After that, she 
could think of no obvious way to make up for the missing federal dollars. 

Jones spoke to CalMatters from Washington D.C., where the heads of housing authorities 
across the country had gathered for a conference and to lobby their representatives. As 
news of the end of the program has spread among her counterparts, “a quiet panic” has set 
in, she said. 

Absent federal money, “we don’t have the funding to solve that problem,” she said. 

The program was modeled after the much larger and well-known Housing Choice Voucher 
program. Also known as “Section 8,” that long-standing program pays at least 70% of the 
rent for anyone earning under a certain income and lucky enough to secure one of its 
scarce vouchers. The Emergency Housing Voucher program is more narrowly targeted at 
those in most dire need: people currently living on the street or in shelters, those just on the 
verge of homelessness and anyone fleeing domestic violence or human trafficking.  

“This could very well lead to thousands of additional people becoming homeless in 
California.” Alex Visotzky, senior policy fellow, the National Alliance to End Homelessness. 

“It’s a group of people who, but for the voucher, would be at extreme risk of falling back into 
homelessness,” said Mari Castaldi, who focuses on state housing policy for the Center for 
Budget and Policy Priorities, a progressive think tank. 

The termination of the emergency programs comes at an inauspicious time for federal 
rental assistance programs across the country. 

For decades, the federal government has offered Housing Choice Vouchers to fewer than 1-
in-4 Americans who qualify for those benefits. In California’s large metro areas, voucher 

https://apnews.com/article/doge-firings-layoffs-federal-government-workers-musk-d33cdd7872d64d2bdd8fe70c28652654
https://www.hud.gov/program_offices/public_indian_housing/ehv/dashboard
https://www.hud.gov/program_offices/public_indian_housing/ehv/dashboard
https://calmatters.org/housing/2022/08/california-housing-crisis-emergency-vouchers/
https://www.urban.org/urban-wire/one-four-americas-housing-assistance-lottery
https://www.urban.org/urban-wire/one-four-americas-housing-assistance-lottery


waiting lists — the time between when someone applies and actually receives one — 
regularly tops out at more than a decade.  

That means few housing authorities will have many extra housing vouchers to offer anyone 
booted from the emergency program. Absent another solution, that would put housing 
authorities in the virtually unprecedented position of having to revoke assistance from 
people who are currently depending upon it to pay the rent. 

“There’s just no plan in place to determine what would happen” in that case, said Alex 
Visotzky with the National Alliance to End Homelessness. “This could very well lead to 
thousands of additional people becoming homeless in California.”  

Why the funds ran out 

The emergency program was never meant to be permanent. Creating one of many COVID-
19-era additions to the nation’s social safety net, Congress funded the emergency 
vouchers in 2021 with a lump sum of $5 billion. Once those funds were spent, the program 
was meant to come to an end. 

The wind-down was supposed to be gradual. 

After the program’s roll out, housing authorities were told to stop reissuing the emergency 
vouchers as renters exited the program — because they no longer needed the help, moved 
to a different city or died. That way, the program was meant to phase itself out of existence. 
The federal housing department was given until 2030 to spend all $5 billion. 

That led many local officials and housing advocates to assume the program would be 
funded through the end of the decade. 

The wind-down of the emergency program is just the latest shudder in an unprecedented 
upheaval in federal housing policy enacted by President Donald Trump. The administration 
is considering mass layoffs at the federal housing department, raising concerns among 
some housing policy experts about whether they can seamlessly operate federal programs, 
including Section 8. After temporary freezes on all categories of federal funding in late 
January, the administration, led by DOGE, its “Department of Government Efficiency,” has 
more quietly extinguished select federal housing programs. Earlier this month the City of 
Los Angeles stopped accepting new applications for its general Housing Choice Voucher 
program, citing uncertain support from Washington. 

The federal housing department did not respond to repeated emails and voice messages 
requesting an interview about why the funds ran out sooner than many expected, and 
whether the news in the March 6 letter represented a change in federal policy. 

https://www.bloomberg.com/news/articles/2025-03-05/hud-plans-to-eliminate-dozens-of-state-and-local-field-offices
https://calmatters.org/politics/2025/01/trump-ca-funding-freeze/
https://www.abc10.com/article/news/local/federal-cuts-housing/103-df88bda8-fade-480d-873b-5a2b94fdb31b
https://apnews.com/article/trump-doge-housing-crisis-cuts-discrimination-d0c6e3b4b030787a1f60a7dc153153dd
https://apnews.com/article/trump-doge-affordable-housing-preservation-crisis-de27d7846271779157550fcec0a78ea6
https://www.latimes.com/california/story/2025-03-06/los-angeles-stops-accepting-new-applicants-for-section-8-citing-budget-uncertainty-in-washington


“To me it just doesn’t sound right, that we’re so far off the mark — four years off the mark,” 
said Emilio Salas, executive director of the Los Angeles County Development Authority, 
which oversees federal housing voucher programs for 66 cities and all unincorporated 
communities across the L.A. basin. 

Sonya Acosta, a policy analyst with the Center for Budget and Policy Priorities, said she 
hasn’t seen any evidence that the end of the Emergency Housing Voucher program is the 
handiwork of DOGE. Instead, she pointed to a familiar problem as the more likely culprit: 
sky-high rents. 

Since Congress authorized the new vouchers in early 2021, rents across the country 
experienced a post-pandemic boom. That’s even true at the bottom half of the rental 
market, which the federal housing department uses to set its rental support levels. 
Between 2021 and 2025, for example, “fair market rents” in San Diego’s Barrio Logan 
neighborhood increased by 43%, nearly double the overall rate of inflation during the same 
period, according to the department. 

Because the housing voucher programs pay the difference between a tenant’s income and 
rent, soaring rents and stagnant incomes mean the government pays more. 

“We’ve seen those really big increases in rent that has also meant that some of the 
spending might have gone a little bit faster than initial HUD estimates,” said Acosta.  

That basic math problem has put the screws to the overall Section 8 program too. Jones, in 
San Diego, said the Housing Commission’s average per-household rental assistance 
payment at the beginning of the pandemic was around $870 each month. Now it’s roughly 
$1,400. Because the emergency voucher program allows for more generous payments and 
because its voucher holders tend to have even lower incomes than regular voucher 
holders, the average emergency voucher is about $2,200, she said. 

“The gap between the rental market and the lowest incomes in our community is 
widening,” she said. 

What happens when the money runs out 

Without fresh funding, there’s no way many housing authorities would be able to transfer 
emergency voucher holders onto the regular voucher program.  

In Santa Barbara County, for example, nearly 1-in-10 of the local housing authority’s 
vouchers have been shelved, kept out of the hands of qualified renters because the 
authority can’t afford to provide the assistance.  

https://www.huduser.gov/portal/datasets/fmr.html
https://www.bls.gov/data/inflation_calculator.htm


So once the emergency funding runs out “we have no way of helping those people right 
now,” said housing authority director Bob Havlicek. “Even if we did have extra vouchers 
available, then its public policy issue of ‘why are you helping these folks if you have people 
on your waitlist?’ We can’t win either way.” 

There isn’t much optimism from advocates that the state will step up once the emergency 
funds run dry.  

Bond funds that the state has used to prop up much of its affordable housing spending are 
running low, Gov. Gavin Newsom’s proposed budget for the coming fiscal year includes 
little extra and rental subsidies, a costly and ongoing expense, have historically been a 
federal responsibility anyway. 

That leaves the federal government, which does not appear to be in a big spending mood 
when it comes to social programs. 

“The gap between the rental market and the lowest incomes in our community is 
widening.” Lisa Jones, CEO, San Diego Housing Commission. 

On Monday, Trump signed a budget bill to continue funding the federal government at 
levels set last year. That may provide a steady funding source for the overall federal housing 
voucher program, though the bill may give his administration flexibility to redirect some of 
those funds if it chooses to. It does nothing to address the fate of the Emergency Housing 
Voucher program.  

“We should figure out a way to save this program and make sure these people continue to 
receive federal rental assistance,” said Tushar Gurjal, a policy analyst at the National 
Association of Housing and Redevelopment Officials, which lobbies Congress on behalf of 
affordable housing providers. “None of these folks did anything wrong. They’re just using 
their vouchers and following all the rules.” 

 

https://calmatters.org/politics/2025/01/gavin-newsom-2025-california-budget/
https://www.usnews.com/news/politics/articles/2025-03-15/trump-signs-budget-appropriations-bill-into-law-says-white-house
https://www.washingtonpost.com/business/2025/03/14/trump-cr-power-government-spending-doge/
https://www.washingtonpost.com/business/2025/03/14/trump-cr-power-government-spending-doge/

	1- agenda03 HA
	B. Audited Financial Statements for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024
	Motion to Approve the Agency-Wide Audited Financial Statements for Fiscal Year
	Ending June 30, 2024
	Motion to Approve Drafts of the 2025 Annual PHA Plan, 5 Year PHA Plan, Housing Choice Voucher Program Administrative Plan, and Moving to Work Supplement to the PHA Plan.
	Motion to Adopt Resolution No. 2025-05: Authorizing Execution of PHA Certification
	of Compliance with PHA Plans and Related Regulations; Board Resolution to
	Accompany the Annual PHA Plan for the Housing Authority of the County of Santa
	Cruz.
	Motion to Adopt Resolution No. 2025-06: Authorizing Execution of MTW
	Certifications of Compliance with Regulations; Board Resolution to Accompany the
	MTW Supplement to the Annual PHA Plan for the Housing Authority of the County
	of Santa Cruz.
	B. Role of the Development Subcommittee
	Motion to Expand the Role of the Development Subcommittee

	2. 3A  February Minutes Housing  Authority Final
	Agenda Item 3B. Received Report Quarterly Financials
	Agenda Item 3C. Received Report Fall 2024 Project-Based Voucher Request for Proposals
	Agenda Item 3D.  Adopted Updated Salary Chart
	AGENDA ITEM NO. 4    Oral Communications
	Commissioner Schiffrin moved to Execute Resolution 2025-02 to further document the Board of Commissioners decision to authorize the acquisition of 2021 – 2031 Chanticleer Avenue for $2,900,000, and Resolution 2025-03 for the allocation of $1,240,000 f...

	3B1 Agenda Item - Agency-Wide Audit Approval FY 2023-24
	AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY
	FROM:      Finance Director
	RECOMMENDATION: Approve the Agency-Wide Audited Financial Statements for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024
	BACKGROUND SUMMARY:
	RECOMMENDATION:

	3B2 FY23-23 Audit - Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz
	3C Support for AB282
	3C Support for AB282
	6A PHA Plan Admin Plan MTW Supp Staff Report
	AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY
	FROM: Executive Director
	RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Drafts of the 2025 Annual PHA Plan, 5 Year PHA Plan, Housing Choice Voucher Program Administrative Plan, and Moving to Work Supplement to the PHA Plan.
	Adopt Resolution No. 2025-05: Authorizing Execution of PHA Certification of Compliance with PHA Plans and Related Regulations; Board Resolution to Accompany the Annual PHA Plan for the Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz.
	Adopt Resolution No. 2025-06: Authorizing Execution of MTW Certifications of Compliance with Regulations; Board Resolution to Accompany the MTW Supplement to the Annual PHA Plan for the Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz.
	______________________________________________________________________________
	BACKGROUND SUMMARY:
	Public Comment Period
	Copies of the draft Annual PHA Agency Plan, 5 Year PHA Plan, HCV Administrative Plan, and MTW Supplement, have been made available to the public through the Housing Authority’s website. Additionally, since Friday, February 7, 2025 notices inviting pub...
	To date, staff have received no public comments on the posted documents. Two required in-person public hearings are scheduled consecutively on March 26, 2025. The first hearing will address general aspects of the Agency Plan, Administrative Plan, and ...
	Copies of the draft Annual PHA Plan, 5 Year PHA Plan, Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) Administrative Plan, and MTW Supplement to the PHA Plan were provided to the Board of Commissioners at the February meeting, and are available at the Housing Authority’...
	The plans will remain under consideration until the Board of Commissioners receives all public feedback. Following this, the Board will direct staff on any necessary modifications, vote to approve the plan documents, and the Chairperson shall then be ...
	1. A resolution authorizing the Execution of PHA Certifications of Compliance with PHA Plan and Related Regulations for Standard and Streamlined PHA Plans.
	2. A resolution authorizing the submission of the MTW Supplement and making required certifications and agreements with HUD with its submission and implementation.
	These resolutions and certifications are now recommended to be adopted by the Board.
	RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Drafts of the 2025 Annual PHA Plan, 5 Year PHA Plan, Housing Choice Voucher Program Administrative Plan, and Moving to Work Supplement to the PHA Plan.
	Adopt Resolution No. 2025-05: Authorizing Execution of PHA Certification of Compliance with PHA Plans and Related Regulations; Board Resolution to Accompany the Annual PHA Plan for the Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz.
	Adopt Resolution No. 2025-06: Authorizing Execution of MTW Certifications of Compliance with Regulations; Board Resolution to Accompany the MTW Supplement to the Annual PHA Plan for the Housing Authority of the County of Santa Cruz.

	9.2025 draft 50077-ST-HCV-HP
	10. 50075-MTWCertOnly draft
	6B Development Subcommittee
	AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY
	FROM:  Executive Director
	RECOMMENDATION: Expand the Role of the Development Subcommittee
	BACKGROUND SUMMARY:
	RECOMMENDATION: Expand the Role of the Development Subcommittee

	8 Director's Reports
	8-2‘Quiet panic’ as national rental assistance program set to run out of cash-after Directors Report

	Fiscal Year Beginning: 07/01/2025
	MTW PHA NAME: HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ
	MTW HA CODE: CA072
	NAME OF AUTHORIZED OFFICIAL: PROVIDENCE MARTINEZ ALANIZ
	TITLE: CHAIR OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
	DATE: 


